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15.315
2038 15
20.315
15.315 2038 20 15
20.315 15.315

2038 20 15

50/185



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15.315
2038
15
20.315
15.315 2038 20 15
2020
81 50
US 1GA UK
1GA 100 CRS US I1GA

AEOI

51/185



US IGA

1GA

I1GA
IRS
TIA

US IGA

FATCA

AEOI

AEOI

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

TIA

CRS
AEOI TIA US I1GA CRS
CRS
AEOI
AEOI
CRS
US I1GA
TIA
TIA
IRS TIA
US IGA AEOI
FATCA
FATCA
FATCA US 1GA
US IGA
US IGA AEOI
CRS TIA
AEOI

52/185

FATCA

CRS

90

AEOI

UK
AEOI

us

TIA

FATCA
FATCA

CRS



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020
21,305,342.00 99.80
43,312.30 0.20
21,348,654.30
2,259 100.00

(2020

Goldman Sachs FP
2018

1.749

2024/4/30 119,990,000 (19,818,086 |21,305,342 [99.80

2020

2020
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2020
(2020 31 ) 19,696,133.62 2,083,850,937 97.04 10,267
2019 10 21,265,241.60 2,249,862,561 103.25 10,924
11 21,291,977.95 2,252,691,267 103.88 10,991
12 21,235,125.52 2,246,676,280 103.61 10,962
2020 22,011,791.85 2,328,847,578 107.39 11,362
21,436,797.67 2,268,013,193 105.62 11,175
18,733,846.22 1,982,040,930 92.30 9,765
19,281,165.20 2,039,947,278 95.00 10,051
19,696,133.62 2,083,850,937 97.04 10,267
20,216,821.24 2,138,939,687 100.12 10,593
21,396,429.81 2,263,742,274 105.96 11,211
21,388,122.31 2,262,863,340 106.24 11,240
21,348,654.30 2,258,687,625 106.30 11,247

0.49 52
100 x
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210,962 8,000 202,962
(210,962) (8,000) (202,962)
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2020 FRA

2018 FRA

2017
DPL
DPL

DPL

DPL
DPL

2019 15
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Eurex TMX
Nasdaq OMX Nordic
12 24
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23 103

2020
105.80
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2020 31
2020 31

229,477 24,279

19,578,727 2,071,429

19,808,204 2,095,708

20,264,780 2,144,014

(568, 646) (60,163)

19,696,134 2,083,851

24,635 2,606

22,964 2,430

19,827 2,098

16,522 1,748

6,878 728

6,077 643

4,932 522

4,587 485

5,648 598

112,070 11,857

19,808,204 2,095,708

2020 11 17
2020 11 17
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2019 26 2020 31
2019 26
2020 31
353,350 37,384
(450,527) (47,666)
41,697 4,412
(55,480) (5,870)
181,355 19,187
68,796 7,279
67,651 7,157
25,135 2,659
22,964 2,430
19,827 2,098
16,522 1,748
6,878 728
4,587 485
413,715 43,771
(469,195) (49,641)
(469,195) (49,641)
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2019 26 2020 31
2019 26 . - - i, ; -
21,096,200 2,231,978 - - 21,096,200 2,231,978
(831,420) (87,964) - - (831,420) (87,964)
- - (99,451) (10,522) (99,451) (10,522)
- - (469,195) (49,641) (469,195) (49,641)
2020 31 20,264,780 2,144,014 (568, 646) (60,163) 19,696,134 2,083,851
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2019 26 2020 31
2019 26
2020 31
(469,195) (49,641)
(20,819, 400) (2,202,693)
831,843 88,009
(41,697) (4,412)
450,527 47,666
24,635 2,606
22,964 2,430
19,827 2,098
16,522 1,748
6,878 728
6,077 643
4,932 522
4,587 485
5,648 598
(19,935, 852) (2,109,213)
21,096,200 2,231,978
(831,420) (87,964)
(99, 451) (10,522)
20,165,329 2,133,492
229,477 24,279
229,477 24,279
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2011 29
1107
25 694
15
96
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2020 31

2020 31

2009
32
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20,029,254 19,578,727
2020 31 2024 30 1.75
2011
2019 12
0.01 3,750
29 2019 12
0.01
2011
19
0.10
AEOI
2011
26
0.50
10
2011 2019
0.02
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2019 12
0.03
2019 12
0.50
10 100
2019 23
210,962 (8,000) 202,962 97.04
2020 31 19,696,134
2020 31

2020 31 99,451
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2018
2020
31 10
1,957,873 2020 31
10 1,957,873
2018
2020 31 25
183,847 25
181,827
4.5 12
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2020 31
19,578,727 100.00
19,578,727 100.00

12

2020 31

1970
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13
2020 31
2020 31
2019 26 2020 31

20,819,400
(831,843)

(408, 830)

19,578,727

(450,527)
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2020 31

5.3 7.0
19,578,727

2018
96
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229,477 229,477
19,578,727 19,578,727
229,477 19,578,727 19,808,204
24,635 24,635
22,964 22,964
19,827 19,827
16,522 16,522
6,878 6,878
6,077 6,077
4,932 4,932
4,587 4,587
5,648 5,648
19,696,134 19,696,134
19,808,204 19,808,204

295,239

2020 11 17
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2020 31

Goldman Sachs FP 2018, 1.74896%

20,203,000 2024 30 20,029,254 19,578,727 99.40
20,029,254 19,578,727 99.40

20,029,254 19,578,727 99.40

117,407 0.60

19,696,134 100.00
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{Expressed im United States dollars)

May 31, 2020
Asgeis
Cash and cash equivalents (INotes 2 and T) 5 229,477
Financial assets at fair valus through proficor less (MNotes 3 and 7) 19,578,727
Tatal assets 19,308,204
Equity {Mote 5)
Patd-in capital 20,264,780
Accumulated deficit (568 646)
Total scpaty 19,656,134
Liahilities
Administration fee payeble (Mote 4) 24,635
Audit fee payable 220964
Truziee fee pryable (Mole 4) 19,827
Manmspger foe pavable (Note 4) 16,522
Agent fee payable (Note 4) GET4
TIrovestment management fee pavable (Mot 4) 6077
Distriboler fee payvable (Nete 4) 4,932
Custody fee payable (Wote 4) 4,587
Other fee payable 5048
Taotal liehilitizs 112,070
Totzl cquity and liabilities % 19 BiE, 204

Approved for issuznce on behalf of CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, not in its individual capecity
bt sodely as Trustes to USD Prime One Fond (37) 2001904, a seriss gest of DIAM Cavman Trust by:

JEOVY MATEUM Date: Movember 17, 2020
ROMMIECUTHBERT

Appraved for issuance on behalf of Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Lud,, not in its individual capacity but
solely as Manager to USLE Prime One Fund (3Y) 2019-04, a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust by:

SHARON BODDEN Date: Moveniber 17, 2020
SINEAD WAGNER

The sceompanying notes are an inegral part of these financial statements,

.
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USD PRIME ONE FUND (5¥) 2019-014
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
COMMENCEMED
¥ 31, 2020

ONS) TO

{Expressed in United States dollars)
Period firom
April 26,2019

{commencement

of operations) o
MEay 31, 2020

Inves tment income/{losses }
Interest from financial assets at feir value through profit or loss 5 353,350
Het change in unreaksed depreciation on financial assers at falr valie through

prafit or loss (450,527)
Met realised gain on financial assets at fir vaiue through profit or loss 41,697

Met inves tment losscs (55,4800
Expenses
Organization cost 181,355
Investment manegement fee (lote 4) 68,796
Distrizutor foe (MNote 4) 47,651
Administration fee (Note 4) 25,135
Audit e TE964
Trustee fee (Note 4) 19,827
Manapger fes (Mote 4) 16,522
Agent fee (Note 4) 6,878
Cusiody fioc (Note 4) 4,387

Total operating expenses 413,715

MNet operaling loss {46%9,195)

Tidal comprehensive losses aftributable to unitholder B (465,195

The secompanying notes are an integral par of these financial statemeants.

-5-
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LSD PRIME ONE FUND (3V) 20709-04
DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

FCHANGES IN EQUITY

PERIOD FROM APRIL 26, 2019 (COMMENCEMENT
OF OPERATIONS) TO MAY 31, 2020

(Expressed in Uniied Siztes dollars)

Accumulated
Paid-in Capital Deficit Total

Balance as ar April 26, 2019 5 - 5 - g -
Unitz subscribed during the period 21,006,200 - 21,096,200
Units redesined during the perad (BI1,420% - (830,420)
Distributions te unithoMer (Note 6) - (99.451) (99.451)
Total comprehensive losses for the period - (469, 195) (469,195)
Balence as ol Moy 31, 2020 3 20,264,780 5 (565646) 3 19,696,134

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial satements.

ke
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USD PFRIME ONE FUND (5] 200 9-04
A SERTES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERIOD FROM APRIL 26, 2019 (COMMENCEMENT
OF OPERATIONS) TO MAY 31, 2020

{Expressed in United States dollars)

Period from
Apeil 26,2019
(comimencenient of
operations) te
May 31, 2020
Cash Nlows from operating activities

Total comprehensive lnsses attributable to Unithalder L (469,195)
Adjustments to reconcile total comprehens ive Ioases attributable to Unithalder
to net cash used in operating acthyithes:

Purchases of financial assets at fair value through profit ar lnzs (20.819.400)
Proceeds fromsalke of fnancial assels at fir velue throegh profit or loss B31,343
Net realised gain on financial assers ac fair valee though profit or loss (41,697
Net change in unsealised depreciation on financial essets at fair value though profit of loss 450,537
Changes o assets and liabilities related to opemtions:
Increase i administration fez payahle 24,635
Increase in audit fee payable ek
Increase in trustee fes payable 19,827
Inerease o rmanager foe payabie 16,532
Increase i agent fee payable 6,878
Increase i investiment nunagement fee pavable G077
Increase i distributor fee payvable 4,992
Increaze in custody fes payable 4,387
Increase m other le payable 5648
Net cash nsedin operating activities (19,935, 852)
Cazh flows from financing activides
Procecds fromsubseriptions 1o Unitheler 21,0200
Redenmpiions paid to Unitholer {530 420)
Distributizns paid to Unithokier 199451)
Netcash provided by linancing sctivitics 2,165,328
Met change in cash and cash equivabents 229477

Cash and cash equivakents at beginning of periad -
Cash and cas b equivalents al endof period 5 LeATT

The sccompanying notes are an integral part of these Snancial statermeénts.

B
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LISD PRIME QONE FUND (5% 201 9-0i4
A SERTES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PERIOD FROM APRIL 26, 2019 (COMMENCEMENT OF OPERATIONS) TO MAY 31, 2020

1. Organizatinn

DIAM Cayimon Trust (the “Trust™) is an exempied unit trust established under the laws of the Cayman Iskands pursuant
to declaration of trust (the “Trust Deed™) dated June 29, 201 1. USD Prime One Fund (57) 200 904 {the “Class Fund )
is a series trust of the Trust which commenced {ts operations on April 26, 2019, The Trust is leensed under the
Coyman Islands Mutual Funds Law under section & (1a) with effect from July 15, 2011, The Trust's place of business
is 23 Main Sireet, P.O. Box 6%, George Town, Grand Caymnan KY'1-1107, Cayman Islands.

The Trust filed & securities registration stetement on March 15, 2019 on belall of the Class Fund pursuant to the
Financial Instrunvent Exchange Law with the Director of the Kanto Local Finamnee Bureau and & registration siatement
pursuant to ihe Investment Trust Law with the Commissioner of the Financial Services Agency.

The investment objective of the Class Fund is to s2ek stable income and sable appreciation of the Class Fund's asseis.
The Class Fund will obtain exposure 10 the Goldman Sachs i-Select IV Valatility Target Series 96 USD Excess Return
Strategy, a rules-based Indexed strategy developed by Goldman Sachs Internatlonal as strategy spensor.

2. Significant accounting policies

‘The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are et cut below. These
policies have been consistently applied 1o all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basls of preparation: The financial satements of the Class Fund have been prepared in accordanee with Intemational
Finarcial Reporting Standards (IFRS) a8 issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board. The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets
and Anancial labilities at fair vahee through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial stalements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of cerfain critical accounting
estimates, It also requires the Trustes 1o exercise it judgment in the process of applying the Class Fand®s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher depres of judpment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
wre significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Notes 2, 7 and §,

All references to net assets throughout this document refer to equity unless otherwise stamed, Net assets per unit
informaticn as disclosed in Mote 5 has been determined 2 fotal assets loss total liabilities civided by the number of
outstapding units of each class of participating wnits,

(a) Standards and amendments 1o existing standards effective Apnil 26, 2019

There are no standards, amendments 10 standards or interpretations that are effective for annual periods beginning on
April 26, 2019 that have a material effect on the financial statements of the Class Fund.

(o) New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the financinl year beginning April 26,
2012 and nos early adopted

A number of new standards, amendments v standasds end interprewtions are effzctive for unnual pericds beginning

after Apsil 26, 2019, and bave pot been eacky adopted in preparing these financiil statements. Wone of these are
expected to have o material effect on the financial statements of the Class Fund.
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LIS PRIME ONE FUNID (SY) 2019-04
A SERTES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PERIOD FROM APRIL 26, 2019 ({COMMENCEMENT OF OPERATIONS) TO MAY 31. 2020

ifcant accountin

Finanrial assets and liahilities st fair value throuph profit or loss: The Cless Fund classifizs itg invesiments based

on both the Class Fund's business model for managing those financial assciz and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the finencial assets. The portfolio of financial asacts iz managed end performance is evaloated on &
fair value besiz, The Class Fund is primarily focused on fair valee information and uses that information to assess the
assets” performance and fo make decisions. The contreciual cash flows of the Class Fund®s debl sccuritics are solely
prinzipal and interest, however, these securities are neither lield for the purpose of collecting, coniractual cash Nows
nor beld both for collecting contractual cash Mows and for sale, The collection of contrectunl cash RAows s only
incidental to achieving the Class Fund's business model's objective. Consequently, ell investments are measured a2
fair value through profit or loss.

Premiums and discounts are amortized on an effective interest vizld method o the maturity of the nvestments o
which they relate,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or less are those that are managed and thelr performance ¢ valuated on a
fair value basis in accordance with the Trust's documented mvestment stratepy. The Trust's policy is for the
Investment Marager (Note 4} to evalozte the information about these financizl assets and liabilities on a falr value
basis, ogether with other related financial information, for the purposes of making investmen: menagemant dacisions.

Cash and cash equivalents: Cashand cash equivalents include all cash on demand and on short motice and all deposits
with eriginal terms to maturity of nat more than 3 months. All of the Class Fund’s cesh and cash equivalent balance
ac at May 31, 2020 is maintained with the Custodian of the Class Fund (Naote 4).

Expenses: Fxpenses are accounted for on an accrual basis,

gt [nterast 15 pecognised on & tme-praporionate
has::s tmnf, |I1¢ -:Iﬁ:c:iw "nmre.at mtthnd_ lnretest ﬁ'nm financial aseets at falr vahie throngh profit or loss iccludes
interect from debt securities,

Income faxes: Under the current laws of the Cayman [slands, thers are no income, estate, transfer sales or other
Cayman Ishand iaxes pavable by the Class Fund. As a result, ro provision for income taxes has been made in the
financi] slatements.

At May 31, 2020, the Class Fund has measured its tax lizhilities with respect fo foraipn capital gains taxes st nil,
However, there is a risk that foreign rax authorities will begin seeking 1o collect taxes on capitel gains earned by the
Class Fund, without giving any prior waming and possibly, on a refrospective basis. Any retrospective enforcement
ey result ina substantial loss o the Class Fund.

Digtribotions: Distributions to the unitholder are included in the Statement of Changes o Equity when they are
approved by the Trusres (MNots 6,

Translation of foreign curcency amoonts: Assets and liabilities derominated in currencies other than the United
States Dollar are translated at the rate of exchenge prevailing en the day of valuation. Foreign carrency Incomee and
expenditura items are converted ot the rae of exchange on the date of the transaction. Gains and losses on forzign
currensies are included in the Statenment of Compreliensive Income In the peciod i which they arise. The Class Fumd
does not isolete that portion of the results of operations vesulting from changes in foreign exchange rates on
irvestnents from fucluations arsing from changes in markel prices of securities held. Such Nuetuations are included
with the net realised wnd unrealized gainfless) on financial assets al fair valve through profit or loss,
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2. Significant accounting policies {continued)

Functional and presentation correney: liems included in the Class Fund's financizl statements are measured using
the United States doltar (the “functionzl currency™), as the Clazs Fund only invests in one security denominated in
United Siates dollar. In addition, the Class Fund has adopied the United Staes dollar as its presentation currency,

Barticipating Units: The Chass Fund issues units (Note 3) which are redesmakle at the holder's option but are
classificd as cquity in gecordance with the [AS 52 smendment in 200%. Any distribution on such units i recognized
in the Suatement of Changes in Equity, The Participating Units can be put back to the Class Fund by the holder at any
businzss day for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Class Fund's net ascets.

3. Financial assets at fair value throuph profit or loss
Financial assets at fir value through profitor loss are comprized of:

May 31,2020
Amortised Cost  Fuir Valoe

Sructured Note 20009254 & 19,578,727

Investment has a maturity date of April 30, 2024 and variable interest rate of 1.75% as of May 51, 2020,
4. Significant agreements and transactions

Trustes

CIBC Bark ard Trust Company (Cayman) Limited is the Trustes of the Trust pursuant fo the Trust Deed dated June
29,2011 (as may and ameaded from time (o tme) and the Class Fund purseant to the Supplemental Trust Deed dated
on March 12, 2019, The Trustee in conjunction with the Manager is responsible for the Trust’s administration and
management, which includes the responsibility for distabution and redemption of units in the Trust. The Trustes and
Muanager have sppointed Mizuho Bank (USA) to provide the day-to-day administration of the Class Fund,

The Trustee i entitled to neceive, out of the assets of the Class Fund, a fiee st the rate of 0.01% per annum of the Fae
Amount which is caleulated by mubtiplying the initial issue price by the number of units in issne at the relevant
valuation day, subject to 2 quarterly minimom fee of US$3,750. The Trustee's fees will be calculated and accrued
daily and payable annually in arrears.

Mannager

Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Lid, (the “Manager™) iz the Manager of the Trust pursuant to the Trust Deed
dated June 29, 2011 (as may be amended from time to time) and the Class Fund pursuent to the supplemental Trust
Deed dated on darch 12, 2019..

The Manager prescribes management of the Class Fund's assets and issue and repurchase of the units of the Class
Fund, The Mangager is entitled to receive, oul of the assets of the Class Fund, & fee at the rate of 0,01% per snnum of the

Fee Amount, subject to a quartsrly minitum foe of USE3,750. The Managar's fee will be caleulated and ecened daily
and payable annually in amears.

=10-
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LIS PRIME I} 2
A SERIES TR F L A

NOTES FINANCIAL STATE

PERIOD FROM APRIL 26, 2019 (COMMENCEMENT OF OFERATIONS) TO MAY 31, 2020

4. Sipnificant apresme 1 contin

Administration

The Trustee and Manaper on behalf of the Class Fund have entered into an agreement with Mizho Bank (USA) dated
Juiy 5, 2001 ard amended en Apeil 19, 2019, under which that party acts as Administrator to the Class Fund. For
providing administsation serviees (o the Class Fund, the Administrator i= entitled 1o receive, out of the assets of the
Class Fund, a fee at the rate of 0. 10% per annum of the Fee Amount, The Adminiztrator will also be entitled to 2 one-
time set-up fee of 520,000 and & fixed annual fee of 82,000 for providing AEO] compliznce reporting services. The
Administretor's fee will be celeulatod and secreed daily and payeble annually in arrears.

Tnvestment manager

Asser Management Ooe Co., Ltd., {the *Trvestment Manager™) his been appointed as Investment Manager to the Trust
pursuznt to the Investment Matagement Agreement duted July B, 2001 and amended on April 26, 2019, pursuent to
which the Investment Manager is autherized 1o supervize ned direct the invesiment and reinvestment of assets in cach
account, with full authority and ot its diseration.

The Investment Manager is entitled w0 receive, out of the assets of the Class Fund, a fee at a mate of up 1o 0,509 per
annum of the Fes Amount, Such fee may be lowered depending on the Fee Amount. The Tnvestment Managors fee
will be calculated and accrued daily and payable anmually in amears. In addition, the Investment Manager will be
entitled to receive, cut of the assets of the Class Fund, a performance fee equivalent to 104 of the total payments frem
the variable rate coupon received for the account of the Cless Fund, and payehle anrually within 60 days sfier (he
variable rate coupon has been declared ar; if earlier, o termination of the Class Fund,

Custedian

Mizuho Bank (USA) (the “Custodian™) has been appointed as the Custedian to the Class Fund by the Trustes pursaant
to a custody agreenent dated July 5, 2011 end amended on April 19, 2019, The Costodian is entitled to receive, out
of the assers of the Class Fund, a fise at the rate of 0.02% per annum of the Fee Amount. The Custodian is also entitled
to a transaction fee in accordance with its nonmal scale. The Custodian’s fee will be calculated and acerued deily end
payable annvally in ammears,

Agent

On March 12, 2019, the Agent Company Agresment was entered into betwesn Queensgate Bank and Trust Company,
Ltd. and Goldman Sachs Japan Co., Ltd. (the “Ageat™). The Agent Company Agresinent 13 an agresment pursuant to
which the Agent, having been appointed by the Manager, agrees to submit the prospectuses regarding the units of the
Class Fund fo the Japan Sscuritdes Dealers’ Association (“JSDA™), publicize the net asset valus per unit and submit
the docyments sach as the financial statements and other documents 1 the JSDA, The Agent Contpany s entitled to
receive, out of the assers of the Class Fund, a fee at the rate of 0L0G% per annum of the Fee Amount. The Agent
Company”s fee will be calculated and accrued and pavable anovally in arrears.

Distributor

On March 12, 201%, the Units Distribution and Repurchase Agreemeant was entered between Queensgats Benk and
Trust Company Ltd, and Daiwa Securities Co., Lad, (“Draiwa™), under which Daiwa ects as Distributor of units in
Japan subject to terms and conditions. The Distribulos is entitled o receive aut of the assets of the Class fund, » fee
of up w0 0.50%% per annur of the Fee Amount which is based on the initial issue price multiplied o the number of
units In issue at the relevant valuation day. The disributer's fees will be acersed daily and payable menthly in
AITERES,

i
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Subscriptions for Uinits i agaregate must not exceed USE] billion. The Units are subscribed at the purchase price of
USS100 per Unit. A sules charge of up o 236, plus any epplicable tax thereon, may be sdded to the purchase peice
peer Unit. The sales charge, if applicable, will be payale to the Distritartor. Following the expiry of the nittal affer
perioed of April 23, 2019, additional Units will not be available for subscription.

The Units of the Class Fund are redeemahle at the aption of the unitholder on each dealing day st a redemption price
equal wo the met assel valuz per unit 83 determined on auch dealing day, provided that the redemption notice has boen
received by the Trusies not less than 1 business days prior to the relevant dealing day.

Mel Assel
Value
Corvrency  Opening Units  Units [ssued  Units Redeemed  Closing Units per Unit
Ush * 210,962 {8000 202962 § 07.04

As at May 31, 2020, the Class Fund had $19,6%6,134 of puttabls financial instruments classified os equity.

The Class Fund's capital is primarily represented by thess Units. In accordence with the objectives owtlined in Mote 1
and the risk management palicies in Mote 7, the Class Fund endeavours to invest the subscriptions received from
unithokder into approprists investmsnts while maintaining sufficient liguidity to meet redemptions, with such liquidity
being augmanted by short-term borrowings or redemption of investments where necessary. As at May 31, 2020, all
units of the Class Fund were held by one unitholder,

6. Distribut

The current distribution pelicy of the Class Fund is to pay in respact of each distribution pericd an annual distribution
following each distribution record date. The Manager may declare and arrange for the payment of distributions in such
amounts, if any, as shall be determined by the Investment Manager equivalent fo the amount received from the fixed
rate coupon plus the amount received from the variable rate coupan, ifany, after deducting the performance fes. All
distribution amounts will be paid in cash on the applicable distribution payment date.

During the period ended May 31, 2020, the Class Fund declared distriburions o the unitholder amounting 1o 599,451,

7. Financial risk management

Stratesty in using financial instruments:

The Class Fund's activities expose it to 2 varicty of financial risks: market risk (including price risk, currency risk and
interest rade risk), credit risk and lquidity risk. The Class Fund's overall risk management propramime focuses on the
unpredicability of financial markels and sesks 1o minfmise potential adverse effects on the Class Fund's Fnanciel
performance.

All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. The maximum loss of capital on debt securities iz limiled
to the fair value of those positions,

-12-
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LSD PRIME ONE FUND (5Y) 2019-04
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERIOD FROM APRIL 26, 2019 (COMMENCEMENT OF OPERATIONS) TO MAY 31, 2020

7. Fingncial risk msnagement feontinped}

Price risk:

The Class Fund is exposed to price volatility risk. Changes in interest rates affect the prices of boads and debentures,
Inceeass in interest rates generally causes decreases in the prices of bonds and debentures and therefore decreases in the
Met Asset Value per Unit. The total erount of the variable rae coupon varies based on the rate of retum of the reference
index. IF the rate of return is negzative, the verisble rate coupon will be reduced 1o zéro and the return on the notes will be
lirnited fo the fixed rate coupon only. Even if the merket imerest rates and dhe credit status of the issuer of the notes,
Gaobdman Sachs Financial Products 2018, does not change, if the total amount of the voriakle rate coupon is expected o
decline due to a deterforation of market conditions where the issuer finances or, due to ¢ decrense of the rate of retum of
the reftrence indéo, the notes” price and the Net Asset Value per Unit will decline.

The Investment Manager manages the Class Fund's investment strategy by monitoring the fectuation of the e of
retum of the reference indext. 1F the market prices of the strectured notes at May 31, 2020 had increased by 10% with
all other variables held constant, this would have increassd nat assets anributable o unitholder by approximately
$1,957,873. Conversely, if'the market prices of the structure notes at May 31, 2020 had decreased by 108, thiz would
have decreased net assets attributable to unithelder by approximarely 51,957,873,

Conceniration risk
The Investment Manager invests substantially all of the procesds for the issuance of units in the structured note Essued

hy a single issuer, Goldman Sachs Financial Products 2008, In the svent that risks regarding the struchured note
raterinlizes, the Class Fund will be significantly affected and the Net Asset Waloe per Unit will dacline significanty,
companed tothe case of ivestment tusts with a diversified investment portfodio.

Interest rate risk:

The structured note in which the assets of the Class Fund may be invested or to which the rules-based indexed strategy
may be exposed may be subject to price Mucmarions thronghout their t2nor that is, the period from the time of their
acquisition by the Tnvestment Manzger until the time of their realisation depending upon interest rate fluctuations
during such period. Tn general, as interest mres in the relavant country fall, a note's or other debt security’s price will
rise, anc A% interest rates in the relevant country rise, a note's or other debt security's price will fall. When interest rates
Nuctuate, the remaining tenor of a debt security including & note may be wsed as an indication of the degree of change
in the merket price of such debt zecurity. All else being equal, the fonger its remaining tencr, the greater the change
will be in the market price of a debt security including & note for a given movement in interest rates. The Net Asset
Walue may Muchute as a resolt of the aforementioned changes on the basis that the assets of the Class Fund and the
nules-based indexed strategy comprise debt securities kaving differing terms to maturity.

The Clizs Fund may be subject to & prester risk of rising interest rates than would nommally be the case doe to the
current period of historicatly low mtes and the effect of potential government fiscal policy initiatives and resulling
market resctien to those initiarives. Longes-term dabt securities are penerally more sensitive to interest rate changes.
Rizing interest rates also may lengthen the duration of debt securities with call featurss, since exercise of the call
becomes less likely as interest rates rige, which in fum will make the securities more cepsitive 1 changes in interest
rares and result in even steeper price declines in the event of further intsrest rate increases, Interest rate risk may be
ircreased by the Class Fund's investment in inversa flgaters and forward commitments becanse of the leveraged nature
of thess investments.

During periods of very low or negative Interest rates, the Clazs Fund may be unable’ to maintain positive retums.
Interest rates in many pants of the world, inclading the United States, are at historically low levels. Very low or
negative interest rates may magnify mterest rute risk. Changing interest rates, including rates that fall below zero, may
lave unpredictable effects on markets, may result in heightencd market volmility and may detmet from the
performance of the Closs Fund.

S19s
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Z._Financial risk management (continued)

Inkezest eate sisk {continned):

Az 31 May 2020, if the interest rate on USD-denominated assets had been lowered by 25 basis points with all other
variables held constant, the increase in net assets attributable to the unitholder would have been $183,847, arising
substantially from the increase in the fiir valee of the debt security. If inferest rates had risen by 235 basis points, the
decreass in net assets attrbulzble to the unitholder would have been $131,827.

The Class Fund has dinset exposure to interest rate changes on the valuation and cash flows of its interest bearing
pasets and lishilities. The above sensitivity analysis may not fully indicate the total effect on the Class Fund®s net
azsels atiributable to the unitholder of future movements in interest rates,

Referenes strategy risk:

Rizks reluted to the refzrence sirategy which underfies the Class Fund’s invesetment in the siructired note inclodes
voluility and strategy risk and dilution, The reference strategy has a volatility adjustment feature which aims to
previde a notional velatility-controlled exposure to the enderlying strategy. This is echieved by periodically increasing
or decreasing the exposure of the reference strategy to the underlying siralegy, based on the historical realized valatility
of the asset over a lookback period of approximately 12 months relative o a pre-determined voletility tarpet of 4,596,
An increase in the realised volatility related to the underlying sirstegy might decrease the exposure of the reference
strategy 1o that underlying strategy and viee versa. The future realiscd volatElity of the anderlying strategy might differ
from the historical realised volatility of that underlying strategy end as such, the weight of the underlying sirategy and
the performance of the reference strategy might be different if it was caleulated based on (he future realized volatility
rather than the historical realised volatility.

Investments in the reference sirategy might be subject to dilution, such thet the interests in those invesments might
be limited and might be subject to diluticn if the reference volatility as specifed in the relevant underyving strategry
supplement exceeds the volatility targes, such that Dywvestors in products linked (o the reference strmlegy might not
benefit fully from increases in the valwe of the underlying strategy. Dilution means that (he renem or loss on an
investment is subject to a multiplier decreasing exposure to such investment 2nd reducing ke volutility and risk of
loss should the value of such investment decling, bt reducing the potential gain should the value of such mvestment
increase, Investors should be avare that if the valee of the underlying strategy of the reference siratcgy increases or
decreases, an investment linked to the refersnes strategy might not have the same mognitude of increased or decreased
value a5 the underlving swategy of the reference strategy.

Credit risk:

The Class Fund is exposed to ceedil risk, which is the Figk thal one party 10 4 financial instrument will eause a financial
Inas for the other party by failing to discharge an ebligation.

The main conccntration 1o which the Class Fund s exposed arises from the Class Fund®s investments in debt securities,
The Clags Fund is also exposed to coumterparty credit risk on trading derivative products, cash and cash equivalants

and other reccivable balances, The Class Fund secks to mitipate its exposere to credit risk by placing its cash balances
and transieting its securities activity with larpe Bnancial mstittions.

w14
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USD PRIME QONE FUND (S¥) 2019-04
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FERIOD FROM APRIL 26, 2019 (COMMENCEMENT OF Tl

1. Financial risk manarement (continued}

et risk (continued):

The Class Fund invests in debt instrurents and the rules-based indexed srategy is also exposed to debt instruments,
In the event that an issuer goes into defaclt or is likely to go o defaull, e price of such lsuer’s securities Mucluste, The
[ssuer has mvested its issuance proceeds into its underlying assess, including senior bonds fsswed by The Goldmen Sachs
Giroup Inc. and performance-linked securities isseed by Goldman Sachs Finwnee Corp Internationn] including sobstitute
agets replacing such securities in the event of, or If thene is a possitility of, cary redemption, termination, an event af
defiult, 2 write down or restructuring or a tax event. The notes are issued by Goldman Sachs Finencial Products 2018 and
guaranteed by The Goldman Sachs Group e, 1fthe creditworthiness of underlying assels or e Guarantor were to decline
sigmificantly due to, among others, deterioation in performance of poor mmagement performance, or if 3t were to go
bankrupt, the Net Asset Value per Linit could be significantly affected and decline siznificantly.

Pordtolio by rating category for each class of debt securitics is as follows:

Way 31, 2020
ool
—Bair Value  Forifolie
Structured Note
Mo raling 3 19578727 100.00%

b1 'l!JE?'ﬂl'."ZT Tk

Al traneactions are settled’paid for upon delivery using spproved brokers, The risk of defaul is considered minfimal,
a3 delivery of securities sold is only made once the breker has received payment. Payment is madc on a purchase once
the securities have been received by the Broker, The trade will fail if either party fails to mest 15 abligation.

The Class Fund measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default, sxpesire at default and
loss given defeult. Manegement considers both historical analyais and forward looking information in determining
any expected credit loss. Management considers the probability of defatlt o be remote 25 the structured notes ane
guarenteed by the Goldmen Sachs Group Tne, wilh & S&P credit raling of BBB+ for long-term debt. As a result, no loss
allowanoe hins beeit recognised besed on 12-manth expecled credit bosses as any such impairment would be wholly
insignificant to the Class Fund,

I eccordonce with the Class Fund's policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Class Fund's credit pasition on 2
daily basis.,

Liquidity risk:
Liquidity risk is the rigk thet the Class Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources o settle its
ehligations in full xs they fall due or can only do s on terme that are materially dizadvartagesus.

Tn the event of market turnoil or & significant deteriormtion in the craditworthiness of issuers or ether simdlar situations,
Tiguidity of the structured rotes may be significanty lost and the sale prics of the structured netes may deviate from the
prices generally expected, causing significant decrease of the Met Asset Vahee per Unit and losses of investors, In addition,
in the event that the credit risk of the issuer materalizes, the structured notes may not be disposed and therefore the
Invesiment Manager may ceass accepting repurchass requests for Units,

Parttcipating Units are redeemed on demand 2t the option of the unitholder. However, the Trustee does not forcsce
that this comtractual maturity disclosed will be representative of the actual cash outflows, ss holders of these
instruments typically retain them for the mediom to log term.

-15-.
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LSD PRIME ONE FUNT [SY) 2009-0}4
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERIOD FROM APRIL 26, 2019 (COMMENCEMENT OF OPERATIONS) TO MAY 31, 2020

7. Financial risk management {feonlinoed)

As ot May 31, 2020, all wcher lishilities of the Class Fund had & contrectunl maturity of less then one month, The
Investment Manager monitors the Class Funds liguidily position on an ongoing hasis.

Custody pisk:

The Class Fund may invest directly or indirectly, in markets where custodial andfor scitlement systems ane not fully
developed. The assets of the Cless Fund which are traded in such markeis and which have been entrusted to sub-
custodians, in circumstances where the use of secl sub-custodians is necessary, may be cxposed 1o cortin rigks. Such
ricks include, but are not limited to, o non-tue delivery versus payment settbement, & physical market, and as a
consequenca the circelation of forged securities, poor information in regands to corporate Bclions, TEgENELionN process
that impacts the availability of the securiies, lack of appropriate legalffiscal iefraswrvcwre ard lack of
compensationrisk fund with a ceniral depository.

The Class Fund maintains a custody account with its prime broker and primary custodian, Mimhoe Bank (USA),
(“Mizuho™). Although the Trustee monitors Mizuho, and belisves that they are appropriste custedians, there is no
guarantee that Mizuho, or any other custodian that the Class Fund mav use from time to time, will not beeome
insolvenr. While both the U5, Barkruptey Code and the Securities Investor Protection Act of 1970 seek to protect
customer property in the eveat of a Rilere, insolvency or liquidation of a broker-dealer, there is no certainty that, in
the event of a failure of 8 broker-dealer that has custody of Class Fund assets, the Class Fund would not incur losses
clue to it peseis being unavailable for a period of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, or both. Because
substantially all of the Class Fund's assets are custodied with one custodian, such lesses could be significant and could
materialiy impair the ability of the Class Fund to achieve its investment objective,

Fair Value [hisclosures:

In acoordance with IFRS |3, the Class Fund is required to classify fair valoe measurements using a fair vahye hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inpuds used in making the measurements. The fair value hieranchy has the following
levels:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active marksts for identical assets or liabilities (Jevel 1.
Inputs other than quoted prices incloded within level 1 that are observablz for the asset or liability, either directly
{that 35, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2.

. Tjr;puis for the asset or lishility that are not based on observable mariket data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level

The tevel in the fair valus hierarchy within which the fair value measurement s categorized in its entirety is determined
on the besis of the lowest level inpot that is signifieact to the Fir value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose,
the sipnificance of an input is assessed against te fair value measurement in its entivety. If a foir value measurement
uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a lavel
3 mersurement, Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
Judpment, considering faciors specific ta the asset or liability.

The determination of wha? constitites “observable’ requires significent judgment by the Class Fund, The Cliss Fund
considers observable data to be that market data that is reedily available, repubsrly distributed or opdated, reliable and
veriftable, not propriesry, and provided by ndependent sources that are actively invalved in the relevant market,

As at May 31, 2020, all the financial assets beld at Gir value through profit and loss were classified =5 level 3.

e
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USD PRIME ONE FUND (5Y) 2019-04
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FERIODN FROM APRIL 26, 2019 (COMMENCEMENT OF QPERA TIONS) TO MAY 31, 2030

7. Financial risk mansrement {continued)

Investments classified within level 3 have sipnificant enobaervable inputs, as they rade infrequently or not at all. As
observable prices ere not available for these securities, the Class Fund has used valuation technigues to derive the fair
value as at May 31, 2020.

The following table includes a rll-forward of the amounis for the pertad from April 26, 2059 1o May 31, 2020 for
investments classified within Level 3. The classification ol en investment within Level 3 is bazed upon the significance
of the unobservable inputs o the overall fair value measurerment. However, Level 3 investments may include, in
addition to the use of unobservable Inputs, observabic inpuls (that iz, inputs that are setively quoted or am be validated
to market sowrces and data); accordingly, the gein and loss in the 1able hebow may include changes in fair value due
in part to changes in observable inputs that are part of the veluation methodolopy.

Structured Note

Crpening balange 5 -
Purchase of investments in szcurities 20,819.400
Proceeds frorm sale of investments in securities (B31,843)
Wet logses recognized in fair value on finencial

assets at fair viave through profit or loss. {408,830}
Cloging halancs § 19578727

et change in unrealised depreciation on financial
azsels al fair value through profit or Ioss 5 sdjﬂtﬂﬂ

There were na transfers batween levels during the perod.

The fallowing table summarizes the quentitative infermation about te valoation technigues and unobservable inputs
uzed for Level 3 investments as of May 31, 2020;

g - = Unobservable
Fair Value Valuation Technique Euputs Rangze
Structured note 5 19,578,727 Option pricing model Vaolatility 33-0.0%%

The investments in seourifics (Noltes™) are issued by Goldman Sachs Financial Products 2018 and guamnteed by The
Goldman Sacha Group Tne,

Their price iz shown as a ditty price and interest is determined by the retum on the Reference Strategy which intends
to adjust the level of volutility of the Goldman Sachs i-Select IV Series 96 USD Excess Retum Strategy (the
“Underlying Stratery™) by rebalancing the hasket weight to the Underhying Strategy on 2 daily basis.

The value of the Underlying Stratepy is caleulated basad on the perfarmance, caleulated by the weighted average of
the value of each asset,

-17-

98/185



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PERIOD FROM APR

1. Financial rick management {continued)

The Notes provide a fixed and variable rate retorn. The fixed rate coupon is based an the market interest rates and the
croait status of the issuer of the Wotes. The variable rats coupon is based on the performance ofthe Underlving Stwategy
index except that the varizhle conpon rate cannot be negative. Az a result, the variable rate coupon functions as a call
pratection againgt negetive retums in the Undedying Strategy.

The valugtion of the fixed return portion of the Notes includes observable inputs (e.g. USD interest rate, etc.). The
weluation of the variable mte partion of the Notes includes certain unobservable inputs {8.g., voladlity of the call
option, ¢ic.) that when considered in totality, lead us to conclade that the Moses should be identified as level 3,

A chonge in esch input variable disclosed in the sbove will rezult in an increase or decreasa in the fair value of the
investment.

8. Ascets and ligbilities not carried a

Invesunents are carried at fair value, The camying valees of all other financial assets and liabilities are carried 2t
amortised cost; their carrying volues are a reasonable approximation of fair value,

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held with banks and gther short-term investments in an active
market. Cash and cash equivalents have been determined using level | inputs,

Recsivable from investments sold and other receivabiles include the contractus] amonnts for seitlement of trades and
other obligations due to the Class Fund, Payable for invesunents purchesed and sceruals represent the contractual
amounts and obligations due by the Class Fand for setflement of trades and expenses. These receivables and payubles
have been depermined using level 2 inpurs.

The puttable valoe of Participating Units is caleulated based on the net difference between tota) nssets and all other
liabilities of the Class Fund in accordance with the Class Fund's governing documents. These Participating Units sre
not traded on an active market, A demand feature §s attached to these units, as they are redesmable et the holders®
option and can be put back to the Class Fund ot any dealing date for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Class
Fund's net asset value somibuable so the Unit Class (Motes 2 and 7).

< 18-
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LSD PRIME ONE FUND (3Y') 201%-04
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES T} FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERIOD FROM APRIL 26. 2019 (COMMENCEMENT OF OPERATIONS) TO MAY 31, 2020

5. Financial insirumenis hy catepory

Financial assets at
Financlal assets at  fadr value through

amortised cast profit or loss ) Total
Assets as per statement of Anancial position
Cash and cash equivalems 3 29477 8 - 5 T29ATT
Finzncia! essets at fair value through profit or loss - 19,578,727 19,578,727

3 229477 5§ 19578727 & 19808204

Liabilities as per statement of financial position

Adminisiration fee payable & 24,635 5 - g 24635
Audit fee payahle 22,964 - 21064
Trustes fes paveble 19,827 = 19827
Manager fee payable 16,522 - 16,522
Agert fee payable 6278 i 6,878
[vestment mansgzment fee pavable 6077 - 6,077
Distributor fee payeble 49352 - 4,932
Custody fee pavable 4,587 - 4,587
Other fze payable 5648 - 5,648
Met assets attributable to Unitholders 19,696,134 - 194696.134
3 19808304 i - 5 19808204

10, Commitments

[n the normal eourse of business, the rustee andior Manager (“Managemeant™) on behalf of the Trust enters
inta contracts that comtain a variety of representations and waranties and which provide general
irdemnificaions. Mamagement's maximum expesure under thess amangemients is unknows, as this wonld
involve fiture claims that may be made agaimst Management that heve not yet oocurred, hovever, based on
experience, Management expects the risk of loss 1o ba remots,

1L, Subseguent evegts

From June I, 2020 through MNovember 17, 2020, theré were subscriptions and redemptions of SNil and
5295 239, respectively.

Subsequerit events were evaluzted up until November 17, 2020, which was the date that the finencial
statements were available to be issued.

-19-
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USD PRIME ONE FUND (5% 2009-04

ASERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (UNAUDITED)

AS AT MAY 31. 2020

(CONTINUED)
AMORTIZED FAIR % OF
QUANTITY SECURITY DESCRIPTION COST VALUE _ NET ASSETS
STRUCTURED NOTES
20,203,000 Gokiman Sachs FP 2018, 1.74896%

due April 30, 2024 $20,029,254 3§ 19,578,727 99.40%

20,029,254 19,578,727 99.40%

TOTAL VALUE OF INVESTMENTS § 20,029,254 19,578,727 99.40%

OTHER ASSETS NET OF LIABILITIES ; 117407 0.60%

NET ASSETS 3 19,606,134 L 00100 %

=210 -
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2020

21,444 ,473.73 2,268,825,321

95,819.43 10,137,696

21,348,654.30 2,258,687,625

200,828

106.30 11,247
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23 103

2020 30
105.80
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2019 2018 12 31

2019 2018
10,242,079 1,083,612 10,786,950 1,141,259
2,000,000 211,600
1,052,219 111,325 1,112,287 117,680
491,849 52,038 464,112 49,103
6,438 681 11,511 1,218
75,232 7,960 97,192 10,283
11,867,817 1,255,615 14,472,052 1,531,143
177,513 18,781 214,777 22,723
12,045,330 1,274,396 14,686,829 1,553,867
6,926,053 732,776 9,496,458 1,004,725
478,758 50,653 488,573 51,691
233,763 24,732 222,460 23,536
7,638,574 808,161 10,207,491 1,079,953
2,000,000 211,600 2,000,000 211,600
2,406,756 254,635 2,479,338 262,314
4,406,756 466,235 4,479,338 473,914
12,045,330 1,274,396 14,686,829 1,553,867
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2019 2018 12 31
2019 2018
101,532 10,742 60,908 6,444
10,955 1,159 8,315 880
90,577 9,583 52,593 5,564
4,586,452 485,247 4,599,595 486,637
206,511 21,849 227,870 24,109
38,400 4,063 38,400 4,063
4,831,363 511,158 4,865,865 514,809
4,921,940 520,741 4,918,458 520,373
10 2,801,848 296,436 2,848,636 301,386
1,031,475 109,130 1,011,255 106,991
361,491 38,246 361,491 38,246
48,390 5,120 139,116 14,718
8,459 895
1,145 121 7 1
173 18 393 42
4,244,522 449,070 4,369,357 462,278
677,418 71,671 549,101 58,095
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2019 2018 12 31
2,000,000 211,600 2,680,237 283,569 4,680,237 495,169
549,101 58,095 549,101 58,095
(750,000) (79,350) (750,000) (79,350)
2,000,000 211,600 2,479,338 262,314 4,479,338 473,914
677,418 71,671 677,418 71,671
(750,000) (79,350) (750,000) (79,350)
2,000,000 211,600 2,406,756 254,635 4,406,756 466,235
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2019 2018 12 31

2019 2018
677,418 71,671 549,101 58,095
48,390 5,120 139,116 14,718
173 18 393 42
725,981 76,809 688,610 72,855
60,068 6,355 (1,092,011) (115,535)
2,000,000 211,600 (2,000,000) (211,600)
(27,737) (2,935) 4,143 438
5,073 537 27,043 2,861
21,960 2,323 3,085 326
(2,570,405) (271,949) 2,503,156 264,834
(9,815) (1,038) 62,334 6,595
11,303 1,196 213,459 22,584
216,428 22,898 409,819 43,359
(11,299) (1,195) (35,957) (3,804)
(750,000) (79,350) (750,000) (79,350)
(544,871) (57,647) (376,138) (39,795)
10,786,950 1,141,259 11,163,088 1,181,055
10,242,079 1,083,612 10,786,950 1,141,259
12,988 1,374 5,972 632
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2019 2018 12 31

1990 15

2009 2014
2014

2031
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2019 10
15
2019
60,052

15 2018 10

2018

2019 2018 12 31
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2019 2018 12 31

16 ( 16 ) 17
2019
12
2019 12 31
16 2019 12 31 2019 12 31

2017 23
2019
23 12
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2019 2018
4,625,137 4,628,459
5,616,942 6,158,491
10,242,079 10,786,950
2019 2018 12 31
2019 2018
321,228 318,352
170,621 145,760
491,849 464,112
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2019 2018
15,005

127,120 110,409
60,826 49,462
202,951 159,871

2019 2018
(1,145) @)
1,145 7

2019 2018
4,322,382 6,107,009
2,603,671 3,389,449
6,926,053 9,496,458
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972,247 372,854 1,345,101
35,957 35,957
(183,572) (183,572)

824,632 372,854 1,197,486

11,299 11,299
(94,051) (94,051)

741,880 372,854 1,114,734

829,577 197,195 1,026,772

78,472 60,644 139,116
(183,179) (183,179)

724,870 257,839 982,709

26,506 21,884 48,390
(93,878) (93,878)

657,498 279,723 937,221

99,762 115,015 214,777

84,382 93,131 177,513

173 173
393 393
2019 2018
10,000,000

2,000,000 2018 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
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Tilly Nominees Limited Coultry Directors Ltd
Tilly Nominees Limited Tilly Directors Limited Tilly
Secretaries Limited Nominee
(Trust) Companies

2019 2018
Tilly Nominees Limited 100 100
Coultry Directors Ltd 100 100
Tilly Directors Limited 100 100
Tilly Secretaries Limited 100 100
2019 12 31 975,610 2018 975,610
2019 2018
12 31
1,044,298 1,108,852
2,260 1,928
1,813,355 1,436,707
5,681 164
12 31
238,600 238,600
25,000 25,000
361,491 361,491
2011 31

10
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2019 12 31
159,712

43 2018 33
2019 2018
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2019 2018 12 31
2019

-0.85  0.55 4,625,137 5,616,942 10,242,079

5.26 1,052,219 1,052,219

491,849 491,849

6,438 6,438

6,175,643 5,616,942 11,792,585

-0.80  0.20 4,322,382 2,603,671 6,926,053

478,758 478,758

4,801,140 2,603,671 7,404,811

1,374,503 3,013,271 4,387,774
2018

-0.75  0.61 4,628,459 6,158,491 10,786,950

1.05 2,000,000 2,000,000

4.45  5.26 1,112,287 1,112,287

464,112 464,112

11,511 11,511

6,216,369 8,158,491 14,374,860

-0.80  0.65 6,107,009 3,389,449 9,496,458

488,573 488,573
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6,595,582 3,389,449 9,985,031
(379,213) 4,769,042 4,389,829
2019 12 31 30 2018 30
4,065 2018 1,099
2019 12 31 30 2018 30
9,040
2018 14,307
2019 2018 12 31 30
2019 2018 12 31
2019 2018 12 31
2019
8,156 (2,768) 5,388
55,901 (2,546) 53,355
64,057 (5.314) 58,743
2018
50,400 (45,091) 5,309
1,284,772 (1,234,116) 50,656
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2019

2019
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12,236 (12) 12,224
5,154 (4,364) 790
1,445 (312) 1,133
1,354,007 (1,283,895) 70,112
10 2019 12 31
2018 7,011

2018 12 31

400,000
2018 12 31

19
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2019 and 2018

{exprazsed i United Siatas dolars)

2018 2018
ASSETS
CURREMT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents {Ncte 3} $ 10,242,079 § 10,788,850
Due from bank on time deposit - 2,000,000
Due fram cliegnts (Note 9) 1,052,219 1,112 287
Client accounts receivable (Mote 4) 431,843 464112
Other receivables 6,438 11,511
Frepaid axpanses 75,232 §7.182
11,867 817 14,472 052
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed asssts (Mote 8) 177,513 214 777
§ 12045330 5 14,686,828
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Depositors’ accounts {Notes 5 and 5) § 6,926,053 3 9406458
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Mote 9) 478,758 488 873
Fees received in advance 233,763 233 480
7,638,574 10,207.491
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Share capitzl (Note 7) 2,000,000 2,000,000
Retained eamings 2,406,736 2478338
4,408,758 4470338
§ 12045330 3 14686829

See notes lo consalidated financial statements
Page 3
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
{expressed in United States doflars)

2019 2018
INTEREST INCOME 3 101,532 5 60,208
INTEREST EXPENSE 10,955 8.315
MET INTEREST INCOME 20,577 52,503
OTHER INCOME
Directorship, trustee and management fess (Mote 9) 4 586,452 4,500 585
Miscellaneaus 206,511 227,870
Rental income 38,400 38,400
4,831,383 4 BES,BES
TOTAL INCOME 4,921,940 4518 458
OFERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benafits (Mote 10) 2,801,848 2,848 838
Adminlstration (Mote 9) 1,031,478 1,011,258
Rent expense (Note 9) 381,491 381,481
Depreciaticn (Mote ) 48,380 133,116
Foreign exchange lossi{gain) - 8,458
Expected credit ioss (Note 4} 1,145 7
Loss on disposal of fixed asset (Mote 6) 173 3g3
4,244,522 4,368 357
MET INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 677,418 $ 548 101

Sew notas o consolidated financial stalements
Page 4
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity
for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
{axprassed in Uniled Stalas dolars)

Total

Retalned sharaholder's

Share capital earnings equity

Balance at December 31, 2017 § 000000 ¥ 2680237 3§ 4 880,237
Net income and comprehensive incame - 548 1041 545 104

Dividends (Mate 7) - {750,000} (750,000)
Balance at December 31, 2018 2,000,000 2479338 4,479 338
Met income and comprehensive income - GiT.418 G677 418

Dividends {Mole 7) - (750, 000Y (T50,000)
Balance at December 31, 2013 § 2000000 § 2406756 § 4406755

See nofes fo consaligeted financial statemants
Page 5

123/185



EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
{expressad in United States doliars)

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN):

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met income and comprehensive income
Adjustments for items not affecting cash:
Depreciation
Loss on dispozal of fixed asset

Changes in operafing assets and liabil'ties:
Due from clients
Due from bank on ime deposit
Client accounts receivable
Other receivables
Prepaid expensas
Depositors' accounts
Aceounts payable and scorued expenses
Fees recelved in advance

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cividends paid

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

SUFPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for interest

2013 2018

5 87T 418 5 548,104
48,290 138,116

173 393

725,881 688,610
60,068 (1,082,011}
2,000,000 {2,000,000)
(27,737) 4,143

5,073 27,043

21,960 3,085
(2,570,406) 2,503,156
(9,815) 62,334

11,203 213,459

216,428 409,810
{11,299) {35.957)
{750,000) (750.000)
{544,871) {276,128)
10,786,950 11,163,088

§ 10242079 $  10,785.250
$ 12,988 5 5572

See notes lo consolidated financial stalemens
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

{expressed in Uniled Slates dollars)

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd (the “Company”) was incersorated under the laws of the
Cayman lslands on June 15, 1990 as Queensgate Bank & Trust Company Ltd ("QBTC") and i5 a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Queensgate Group Lid. {the "Parent”), a company alsa incorporated in the
Cayman Islands

On January 2, 2008, QBTC underiock a restructuring in order to separate the banking activities from
the trust activiies. Subsequently, on January 1, 2014, the Company undartoas a merger to re-comhbing
the bank and the trust activities. On January 2, 2014, the Company changed its name to Queensgate
Bank and Trust Company Ltd. The newly named company continued as the entity formerly named
Gueansgate Trust Company Lid. and is icensed with a Class B Banking license, 3 Trust Company
licanse and Mutual Fund Administration icense with the Cayman 1slands Manatary Authority (“CIMA™,

The Company has received an undartaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempting # from all

kocal income, profits and capital gains taxes until Feoruary 1, 2031, No such taxes exist in the Cayman
Islands at the present time.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Imternational Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRE") and reflect the following policies:

Basis of consolidation

The conselidated financial staternents incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Conirol is achieved when the Company.

= has powar over the investes;
= s exposed, or has rights, to vasiable retums fram its invalvement with the investes: and
+  has the ability to use ita power to affect itz returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an invesiee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes o one or more of the thiee elaments of control listed above,

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obfaing confrol aver the subsidiary and ceases
when the Company loses control of the subsidary, Specificaily, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired of disposed af during the year are included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to confrol
the subsidiary

All significant intercompany transaclions and balances have been eliminated on consoiidation, Refer 1o
Mote 8 for other disclosures relating to the subsidiaries.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
fexpressed in Unided Sfates dollars) {continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec)

Use of estimates

Financizal statements prepared in accordance with IFRS reguire management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amourts of assets and liabilities and disciosure of contingent assets
and liabiltias at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenss
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-termn deposils with an original maturity of three
months ar less.

Due from bank on tima deposit
Due fram banx on time deposit includes a deposit with an original maturity of greater than three months
Due from cliants

Due from clients are temporary overdrafts given 1o clien's and the carrying value approximates fair
value as such amourts bear interest at vardable rates. Due from clienis are recorded net of a provision
for expected credit losses. The expected eredit logses provision s estimated by managemant when
losses are expected.

Client accournts receivable and alfowance for doubtful accounts

Client accounis receivable includes fee income receivaoles generated from the Company's
diractorship, trustee and managerment fees and receivables for disbursements made on behall of
chents. Fee income receivables are stated net of a provision for expacted credit losses. Receivables
for disbursemants made on behalf of clients do not have a related provision for expected credit losses
as these balances lypically represent unbiled disbursements that the Company expects to recaver
once biled,

The provision for axpected credit losses is eslablished by sharges fo income based on the expected
credit losses in reseivable balances, These are based upen management’s knowledgs of the current
condition af the Company’s clients. When losses are expected, recevables are written off against the
related provision for expected credit losses; subsequent recoveres are credited to the provision in the
consalidated statements of comprehensive income,
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

fexprassed in Uniled States dofars) {continued)

Z. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fixed assats

A new fined assat policy was implemented on January 1, 2019, amending the estimated useful Ives of
furniture and computer equipment from 3 to 10 years to 3 to 15 years, and motor vehicles from 5 years
Io 8 yaars, This policy was updated as a result of a current year review of the fixed assets in operation,
for which it was concluded that the actual usefui life exceeded the former policy. The effect of this for
2019 was to reduce the depreciation expense by 360,052,

Fied assels are stalad al cosl less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated using the
straight-line mathod and 5 based oo the estimated ives as folows:

Furniture and computer equipment 3 to 15 years {2018: 3 to 10 years)
Mator vehicles & years (2018, 5 years)

At the end of each reparting pericd, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its fixed assels to
determing whether there i any indication that those assets have suffered an impairmant loss. [f any
such indication exists, the recoverable amauni of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss {if any). For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company has
not identified any assets for which an Impairment loss was recorded.

Interest income and expeanse

Interest income and expense are recognised in the consclidated statements of comprehensive income
for all interest beanng instruments or an accrual basis using the efective vield method.

Revenue recognition
The Company recogrisaes revenue from fhe following sources:

+  directorship, trustee, management gnd ather similar services provided to clients,

»  miscellaneous services provided to clients and disbursement charges for services provided to
client in connection with the directorship, trustee and management services being provided;
and

+ rental income for use of its office space.

Reovenue is measured based on the congsideration that the Company is confracted to receiva from its
clients and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recogrises revenues
an an acerual basis as perfarmance obligations are satisfied

The primary source of revenue for the Company iz from the provision of directorship, frustes,
management, and registered office services (o 8 clenls. For thess services, the Company recognises
revenues aver the contracted period of service which coincides with a calendar vear. Where mudliple

services are provided fo & single client the revenues generated from each type of service are
recognised saparately.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2018

{expressed in United States doflars) {continued)

Z. SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTIMG POLICIES (continuod)

Revenue recognition [continued)

Miscellaneaus income includes disbursement fees charged to clignts for the Company's overhead and
fees charged 1o clients for miscellaneous services such as copy services for mestings or courier costs
Disbursemant fee ravanue is charged basad on a percentage of the contracted revenue for directorshig,
trustea, managemeant and other simi'ar services and is recognised in the same patiem as the revenues
for those senvices, Fees charged to clents for miscellaneous services are recognisad in revenue at the
paint in time in which they are provided.

The Company records rental income from leasing out their office space to thind parties. The rental
income is samed and recognised on a maonth to month basis and is not based on a contract

Foreign currency transiation

The Company's presantation curency is the Uinited States dollar. Assels and fliahilities denominated or
accounted for in currancies cther than United States dollars have been trenslated into Unitec States
daliars at the apolicable exchange rates ruling at the ststement of financial position date. Foreign currency
fransactions and incorme and axpensa items have been translated at the exchange rates existing at the
tirme of the transaction. Gains and losses arising from translation are included in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income

Assets under administration

Securities, cash and other assets held on behalf of dients in a rust, agency or fiduciary capachy are not
inchuded in these consalidated financial statements as such assets are nol the property of e Company,

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s slatement of financial position
when the Company becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
and financial liabiliies are infially measurad at fair value and subsequent!y measured at amaortised cost
or subsequently measurad at fair va'ue depending on their cash flow characteristics. Due to the short
term nature of the financial assets and liabilities held by the Company, carrying value approximalés fair
value.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
of it transfers the financial assct and substantially all of the fsks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to anather entity. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the Company's cbligations are
discharged, cancelled, or they axpie.

Fidueiary activities

The Company, i1 its fiduciary capacity, may be a party to liigation and claims in the nommal course of

business. In the opinion of the Directors, which is based on the advice from the Company's lawyers,
no previsions are requared at December 31, 2019 and 2018
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
fexpressed in United Slates dollars) {centinued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

New and amended IFRS standards that are effective for the current year

IFRS 16 Leases ("IFRS 167) replaces |AS 17 Leases and is effective for annual periods beginning an
or after January 1, 2019, The standard provides a comprehansive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and a single lease accounting model which requires lessees to recogniee assats and
iiabikties for all legse arrangements uniess the t2rm is 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a
low value. The Company has adopted IFRS 16 for the year ended December 31, 2018, Due to the
short-term  nature of the one |ease conbract existing as at and during the year ended
December 31, 2018, thera has bean no significant impact upon adoption,

In June 2017, the IFRS Intarpretations Committes issved IFRIC 23, Uncertainly owver Income Tax
Treatments, which is effective for annual periods baginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early
application parmitted and fransitional rules apply, IFRIC 23 clarifies how lo apply the recognition and
measurament requirements in 1A 12 focome Taxes when there is uncedainty over income tax
treatments. The adoption of this guidarce had no significant impact on the financial statements,

New and revised IFRS standards in issue but not yet effective

The Campany has reviewed the IFRS standards that have been issuad but are not yet effective and
has concluded that they will ot have a materal impact on the financial statements in future pariods.

Critical accounting fudgemeant and key source of estimation uncertainty

The Company makes estimatas and assumptions that affect the reporied amounts of assels and liabilities.
Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors including
expectations of future events that are believed (o be reasonable under the circumstances, The key areas
of judgemeant or estimation are with regard 1o the expected useful econamic lives of fived assels as wall
as the recoverability of client accounts receivable fram clients and due from clients. The expected useful
economic lives of fixed assels are based on pror expenence of similar assels. Client accounts receivable
and dug from clients are considered to be recoverable in full by the Company after taking info
consideration the age of the recavable, the financial stability of the delbtors and the post year end receipts
ta the date of the report.

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2018 2018

Call deposits 5 4,525 137 3 4,628,459
Short-term fixed deposits 5,616,542 6,158,481
5 10.242.07% % 10,788 950

Short-tenm fixed depasits as st December 31, 2018 and 2018 mature within three manths from the onginal
issued date.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

faxpressed fn United Siates dolars) (continued)

4. CLIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Amounts receivable in respect of fag incame eamed by the Company or disburseaments made on bahalf
of clients are comprised as follows:

2019 2018

Fee income receivables 5 321,228 5 318,352
Receivables for disbursemeants made on behall of clients 170,621 145,760
Less: provision for expected credit lossas = -
-3 491,849 5 464,112

Fee incoms receivables include amounts thal are past due at the end of the reporting perniod for which
the Coempany has net recognised a provision for expected credit losses as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and amounts are still considerad recoverable. In determining the
racovarablity of the fee income receivables, the Company considars any change in the credit quality
of the recaivables from the date the credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting period.

Age of fee income receivables that are past due but not impairad

_— 2013 , 2018
91 to 180 days 3 15,005 5 -
181 to 360 days 127,120 110,408
Civer 360 days BD,828 49,462
Total — past due but not impaired 5 202,951 3 158,871
Maovemnents in the pravision for expected credit lossas were as fallows:
2018 2018
Balance at baginning of year 5 - 3 -
Impairment losses reversad - i
Amounts written off during the year as uncollectible {1,145) (7
Increase in provision 1,145 7
Batance at end of year $ - ]

To reduce exposung to cradit nsk, the Company reviews the credit quality of its custemers and defines
credit [imis as pard of is anboarding process, Credit quality and limits of the receivables portfolio are
reviewed on an ongoing basis throughout the year.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

{expressed i Unted Slales dollars) feenfinued)

5. DEPOSITORS' ACCOUNTS

Depositors’ acocunts ane classified as follows:

2019 2018
Call deposits § 4322382 5§ 6,107,009
Fixed deposits 2,603,671 3.385 449
3 6,926,053 i 9,456 458
6. FIXED ASSETS
Furnitura and
computer
equipment Matar vehiclas Total
Cost
Balance at December 31, 2017 5 572,247 5 372854 §  1,245101
Additions 35,957 = 35,857
Disposals (183,572) - {183.572)
Balance at December 31, 2018 B24 532 372,854 1,197,485
Additions 11,299 - 11,289
Disposals (94.051) 7 (94,051}
Batance at Decemnber 31, 2018 _ VT41BBO 372,854 1114734
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at December 31, 2017 829,577 187,195 1,028,772
Depreciation expense 78,472 60,644 139118
Disposals (183,178) = {18317
Balance at December 31, 2018 724,870 257 B39 0H2. 709
Depreciation expense 26,506 21,884 45 380
Disposals (93.878) = (03 878)
Balance at Decembar 31, 2018 B57,498 279,723 437,221
et bock value, December 31, 2018 3 99,762 3 115015 § 214,777
Met book value, December 31, 2019 5 84382 5 93131 § 177,513

During the year ended December 31, 2019, computer equipment with a net book value of $173 was
disposed, resulting in & loss of $173. During the year ended December 31, 2018, comouter equipment
with a net book vaiue of $393 was disposed, resulting in a loss of $393
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
fexprassed in Uniled Siales dollars) {continued)

7. SHARE CAPITAL

2019 2018
fwthorized:
10,000,000 Crdinary voting shares of 1 par value sach
Issued:
2,000,000 Crdinary voting shares {2018: 2.000,000) § 2000000 $ 2000000

The Directors may declare dividends and distributions on shares in issua and authorise payrment of the
dividends or distributions cut of the funds of the Company. Mo dividend or distribulion shall be paid
except ouf of the realised or unrealised profits ¢f the Company. The rights conferred upan the holders
of the shares of any class issued with preferred or other rights shall not, unless otherwise expressly
provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that cdass, be deemed to be vared by the creation or
issue of further shares rarking par passu therewith,

B. SUBSIDIARIES

The consoldated fnancial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholiy-cwned
subsidiaries, Tilly Momirees Limited and Couitry Directors Lid., and Tilly Mominees Limited, in turn, is
parent to twa wholly-owned subsidiaries, Tilly Directors Limited and Tilly Secretaries Limited (colleclively,
the "Subsidiaries”). All of the subsidiares I'sted below are licensed as Nominee (Trust) Companies with

CIMA,
Place of Preportion of awnarship
Principal incarparation interest and voting power
Name of subsidlary activity _ and operation held by the Campany
2018 208
Provide nominee
Tilly Neminees Limited  shareholder services  Cayman Islands 100% 100%
Provide corporate
Cauliry Directors Ltd director sarvices  Cayman Islands 100% 100%
Provide corporate
Tilty Diractors Limited director services  Cayman Islands 100% 100%
Provide company
Tilly Secretaries Limited secratary services  Cayman Islands 100% 1009

The Company has not provided financial support to its Subsidianes during the year, nor does it intend to
provide financial or other support. There are no significant restrictions on the Company’s ability to access
or use assals o selle labites of the Subsidizries.

As of December 31, 2019, guarantees in the total amount of $575 610 (2015: 3575,610) have been issued
by the Company to the Government of the Cayman |slands on behalf of its Subsidiaries
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2018

{expressed in United States doflars) {continued)

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Included in the consoiidated finarcial statements are the following releted party balances amd

fransactons:
2019 2018
Az of Decamber 31:
Due from clients 1,044 288 1,108, 852
Client accounts receivable 2,280 1,928
Depositors’ accounts 1,813,355 1,438,707
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 55681 164
For the years ended December 31;
Directorship, rustes and management fees 238,600 238 800
Directors’ fees (incleded in Administration expensas) 23,000 25,000
Rant expanse 351,481 361,481

All tranvsactions with related parties are conducted on normal commercial temms and at non-prefarential
interest rates,

Certain employees of the Company and cenain assets of the Company are also utilised by the Parent
for its cngoing operations. The employees' servicas and use of the assets is currantly not recharged ta
the Parant.

Some of the Company’s employees are also providing directorship services to @ number of clients who
have deposits and cverdrafts with the Company.

The Company leases office space from a related party.  The arnual lease expired on
August 31, 2011, The Company is currently leasing the space on a month to manth basks based on
the prior lease agreement.

10. PENSION PLAN

The Company has a defined contribution pension scheme in place for ail of its qualfying employess.
Confributions are calculated as a percentage of salary based on the prescrbed maximum of 5% and
are matched by the Company. The Company pays the employees’ portion.  The total pension cost
recognised during the year ended Docember 31, 2019 was $149,568 (2018 $159,712) and is included
in salaries and benefits in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
(expressed i Uniled Slates dollars) {zontinued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise 1o a financial asset of ane entity and a finarcial [@3bility
of another entity. The Company enters into contracts involving financial instruments during the normal
course of ils business.

Risgk expogures arising from financial instruments are monitored by management. The main risks
ariging from the Company’s financial instruments are credit and counterparty risk, Bguidity risk and
market risk. The exposure o, and management of, these nsks is summarised below. The year-end
figures reported in these consoldated fSnancial statements for financial mstruments are reflective of the
position held throughout the year and are consistent with the objectives, policies and sirategies
approved by managemeant.

Cradit and counterparty risk

Cradit and courterparty risk is the risk that one pay (o a financial instrument will cause a fingncial loss
far the other party by failing to discharge an ebligation. Financial instruments which potentialiy expose
the Company to credit and counterparty risk consist primarity of cash and cash eguivalents, due from
bank on ime deposit, due from clients ang client aceounts recaivabhe

The Company manages its axposure to credit and counterparty risk by placing cash, fixed deposits,
and time deposits with a regulated finarcial institution in the Cayman Islands, only taking refered
business, and monitaing outstanding receivable balances, as discussad in Note 4

The Company has a concentration risk with all cash and cash equivalents and due from bark on time
depasit being held by one financial institution in the Cayman Islands,

During the year ended December 31, 2019, approximately 43% (2018 33%) of the Company's
diractarship, trustes and management feas ware earmed from its three (2018; two) largest customers.
Mo other customers contributed more than 10% to the Company's directorship, trustee and
management fees during 2018 or 2018,

Liguidity risk
Liguidity risk is the rigk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities,

The Company's objective is to maintain deposkors’ accounts which have a range of malurities
consistent with its asset base. Liquidity risk is monitored by the Company's managament lo ensura
that the Campany has sufficient liquid assets to be able 1o meet its fulure expected cash outiows. The
Company endeavors to match the terms of its llabilities and assets, primarily cash and cash equivalents,
fixed deposits and the depositors’ accounts, and maintains a significant proportian of its assets in cash
in order 1o manage liquidity risk. Refer to interest rate risk table disclosures for analysis of liquidity gap.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will Mucluate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk for the Company comprises interest rate risk and
Cumency fisk.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST CONMPANY LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2013
{expresssd in Uniled Stales dollars) [continued)

11, RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Interost rate risk

Interest rate risk is the rigk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrurment will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by ensuring that the interest rale on assels (l.e, cash, due
from bank on tme deposit, and due from clients) equals or exceeds that of the relevan: offsetling Eability
{i.e. depositors’ accounts). The lables below summarise this matching as of December 31, 2019 and
2018. Itemng ane allocated to time bands by referance fo the earlier of the nest interest rate re-pricing
date and the maturily dale.

2019
Effective
Interest
Rate Less than  Greatar than
of Range (%] _ On demand 3 months 3 months Total
Monotary Assots:
Cash and cash equivaients 085w 055 § 4825137 § SE1AD4z 3 - 8 10242079
Crae from bank an e deposit - % - - .
D Trosm edianite 529 1.082310 1052219
LClienl accounts recehabls - 451848 - - 491,849
Dther racaboablas - 5438 - . €433
5 BiTER4Y 5 EGIG042 3§ - 5 11790585
Monétary Liabilties:
Dppositors’ accounts 000020 5 4322382 5 26006T § - & 6828053
Ascounts payable end accnued
Expanses - 478.758 - — 4TB. TS
§ 4501140 5 ZEDAET1 § - % TAL4EN
SansHivityliguidity gap § 1374503 5 3003771 § = 5 A3ATTT4
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

(expressed in Uniled Slales dollars) {cantinuad)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT {coniinued)

lnteras! rate risk (continoed)
2018:
Effactive
Inberest
Rate Less than Greater than
or Range (%) On demand 3 months 3 mornths Total
Monetary Assets:
Cash and sash equaients L75wi8l § 4528458 5 G15B481 3§ - % 10.788.850
Due from bank on tma deposd 1.05 - 2,000, 00d = 2.000.000
Due from chents 4,45t 526 1112287 - 1112237
Chent accounts receivable Ni& 464,112 - 454,112
Canef recelvaties i, 11,511 e G T 1 ' 1 | |
§ G216360 5 8168401 § - % 14374850
Maonatany Liabilitioes:
Capositors’ accounts 60065 § GU0T006 § 3360449 § = § 5498458
Accounts payabls and scerued
Bxpenes oA, 483,573 - . 458 573
§ E5O5581 & 3365448 % - § 5885051
Sensitivityliguidity gap § (33 § 4TEO0MD § . 4 AE0 BEG

The Company is exposed to risks associated with the effects of fluctuations in prevailing levels of fixed
and Boaling interast rates on its cash flows.

At Decernber 31, 2018, if markot interest rates had been 30 (2018: 30) basis points higherflower with
all other wvarlables held constant, shareholders equity would have been 54,085 higher/ower
(2018: 51088 lowerhigher), respectively, with respect to floating interest rate exposure. At
December 31, 2019, if market intarest rates had bean 30 (2018: 30) basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, sharehalder's equity would have been 58,040 higherfower {2018
514 307 higherfower), respactively, with respect to fived interest rate exposure,

This analysis is based on interest bearing instruments held at year-end, and assumes the change in
interest rates tock place at the beginning of the yeer and the interest bearing instruments were held
constant throughout the reporting peniod. Thirty basis points is the sensitivity rate used when reporing
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents managemeant’s assessment
of the possible changs in market rates for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018,
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

{exprezsed in Uniled States doflars) (continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluchuate due to changes in foreign
gxchange rales.

The Caompany cperates in the Cayman Islands, and mainly ho'ds instruments with net exposures to the
follywing currencies: Great Britain pound, Japanese yen, Cayman |slands dollar, Canadian dollar, Euro
and Norwegian kroner. Since the Campany prepares its financial statements in United States dallars,
the Company's consolidated statements of financizl position are affected by movements in the
exchange rates of these currencies and the United States dollar, except the Cayman Islands dollar
which has 2 fixed exchanga rate against the United States dollar. Translation gairsfiosses arising from
these exposures are reported net in the consolidated statements of comprehensive incoma

The table below shows the Company’s currency exposures being those transactional exposures that
give rise o the nel currency gains and losses recognised in the consolidated staternents of
comprehensive income, Such exposures compnise the monetary liabilies of the Company that are not
demominated in either the presentation currency of a currency with a fived rate of exchange to the
presentation currency of the Company. The Company manages ils cumrency risk by ensuring that
forzign currency sssels and liabilities approximately net against each other. As of Dacember 31, 2019
and 2018, these expasures ware as lollows:

Significant net foreign currency manetary assets, December 31. 2015 and 2018 (franslated into United

Siatas dollars):
2013

Met foraign
Cash and cash Depositors’  currency monetary
equivalents  accounts _ azsets
EUR 3 8156 % [2.768) 5,388
GBP 55,90 12,546} 53,355
MOK 2 H >
JPY - F F
CaAD - z %
3 64,057 5 (5,314) § £8,743
Page 19
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

{axpressed in United States dollars) {continued)

11. REEK MANAGEMENT {continued)

Curreney risk (continued)
2018

Met foreign
Cash and cash Depositars'  currancy monetary
equivalants accounts assats
EUR ] 50400 3§ (45,001 % 5,309
GBP 1,284,772 {1,234,1186) 506585
MOK 12,236 {12) 12224
JPY 5,154 {4,354) 750
caD 1,445 {312) 1,133
] 1,354,007 5 {1,283,B85) 35 70,112

Had the Unitad States dollar been strongsr or weaker by 10% against the relevant foreign currencies
with all ather variables held constant, the nat result for the year ended December 31, 2019 would
decrease ar increase by 55,874 (2018; 57.011).

12. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company managas its capital ta ansure that the Company will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to the sharsholder through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2018,

The capital structure of the Company consists of issued Ordinary voling shares and retained eamings.

Page 20
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
{sxpressed in United Siales dollars) [cartinued)

13. REGULATORY MATTERS

Tha Company is subject to regulatery capital requirements established by CiMA,  Failure to mast
minimum capital requirements can iniiate certain aclions by the regulatar that, if undedaken, coukd
have a direct material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.  Under capital
adequacy guidelines used by CIMA and prescnbed under The Banks and Trust Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the Company must meet specific capital guidelines that invehe guantitetive measures
of the Company’s assels, liabiities, and certain off-balance shest items as calculated urder regulatory
accounting practees. The Company's capital amaunts and classification are also subject to qualitative
judgrnents by CIMA about components and risk weightings.,

The Company is required at all tmes o maintain a capital adequacy ratio of at least 15% according to
current regulaticn and the provigions of s Banking license, The Company is in compliance with this
requirament as at and for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2018

Under the terms of its licenses, the Company is required to maintain @ minimum net werth af

KYDa00 000 (US3500,000). The Company is in compliance with this requirement as at and for the
years ended Decamber 31, 2018 and 2018,

14. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the prior year figures have been reclassified 1o conform with the financial siatements
presentation adopted in the current year

15. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consclidated financial statements were approved by a committes of the Board of Direciors and
authorised for issue on March 19 2020,

Page 21
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2020 30

2020 30 2019 12 31

10,190,939 1,078,201 10,242,079 1,083,612

1,044,921 110,553 1,052,219 111,325
94 10 972 103
1,079,701 114,232 569,973 60,303
170,032 17,989 177,513 18,781

12,485,686 1,320,986 12,042,755 1,274,124

6,239,900 660,181 6,926,053 732,776
1,215,862 128,638 612,588 64,812
1 0 363 38
258,424 27,341 96,996 10,262
7,714,186 816,161 7,635,999 807,889
1.00 10,000,000
2,000,000 2,000,000 211,600 2,000,000 211,600
2,771,500 293,225 2,406,756 254,635
4,771,500 504,825 4,406,756 466,235

12,485,686 1,320,986 12,042,755 1,274,124
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2020 30
2020 30 2019 12 31
31,041 3,379 90,577 9,583
31,941 3.379 90.577 9,583
2,282,916 241,533 4,585,307 485,125
19.200 2.031 38. 400 4.063
65.872 6.969 206.511  21.849
2,399,928 253,912 4.920.795 520,620
180,746 19,123 361,491 38,246
1,047.427 110,818 2,105.811  222.795
300,504  31.803 549.100  58.095
12.150 1.285 23,600 2.497
115.925 12,265 251.901  26.651
37.709 3.990 79.835 8.447
13.880 1.469 21.549 2.280
65,250 6,903 162,367 17,178
17,883 1,892 21,904 2,317
1,666 176 3.131 331
23,491 2,485 50,426 5,335
15.219 1.610 44,480 4.706
7,462 789 12,506 1,323
9.021 954 24,968 2.642
67,574 7,149 104,612 11,068
14,875 1,574 29,750 3,148
14,171 1,499 53,686 5,680
1.885 199 12.618 1.335
2.293 243 13.170 1.393
12.500 1,323 25.000 2.645
1,758 186 19.124 2.023
5,531 585 10,418 1,102
10, 662 1,128 29420 3.113
23.548 2.491 48.390 5.120
31,965 3,382 37,182 3,934

2,035,184 215,322 4,096,440 433,403
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2020 30
2020 30 2019 12 31

364,744 38,590 824,355 87,217

146,937 15,546

364,744 38,590 677.418 71,671

2,406,756 254,635 2,479,338 262,314

(750,000)  (79,350)

2,771,500 293,225 2,406,756 254,635
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(C 2017
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Independent Auditor's Report

To CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, not in itsindividual capacity but solely as trustee of USD
Prime One Fund (5Y) 2019-04, a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust

Our opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of USD Prime
One Fund (5Y) 2019-04 (the “Class Fund”), a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust (the "Trust") as at May 31, 2020,

and its financia performance and its cash flows for the period from April 26, 2019 (commencement of operations) to
May 31, 2020 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

What we have audited
The Class Fund's financial statements comprise;

e the statement of financia position as at May 31, 2020;
e the statement of comprehensive income for the period from April 26, 2019 (commencement of operations) to

May 31, 2020;

e the statement of changesin equity for the period from April 26, 2019 (commencement of operations) to May 31,
2020;

e the statement of cash flows for the period from April 26, 2019 (commencement of operations) to May 31, 2020;
and

e thenotesto the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAS). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Class Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual Report (but does
not include the Class Fund's financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon).

Our opinion on the Class Fund's financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Class Fund's financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financia statements, management is responsible for assessing the Class Fund' s ability to continue as
agoing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Class Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financia statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAswill aways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financia statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with |SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Class Fund's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether amaterial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Class Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosuresin the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Class Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financia statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited, not initsindividual capacity but solely as trustee of the Class Fund in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter and for no other purpose.  We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

November 17, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (the "Company'), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in
shareholder®s equity and cash flows for the years then ended (all expressed in United States Dollars),
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and its financial
performance, its changes in equity and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company*s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company*s financial reporting process.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting fromerror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company®s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management”s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company®s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor”s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Deloitte & Touche
March 19, 2020
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